
CITY OF ROOSEVELT PARK 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

AGENDA 
May 13, 2024 

    6:15 p.m. 
 

 
 

1.  Council Work Session 

2. Call to Order and Roll Call 

3. Pledge of Allegiance  

4. Invocation by Councilmember Goodman 

5. Public Comment on Agenda Items  

 

6.     Approval of Consent Agenda 

a. Regular Agenda 

b. Minutes of the April 15, 2024- Regular City Council Meeting 

c. List of Bills 

 

7. Unfinished Business 

      

8.   New Business 

a. Downtown Development Authority Board Resignation-Council Acceptance 

b. Downtown Development Authority Board Application-Council Appointment 

c. 2024 National Police Week Resolution-Council Approval 

d. 2024 Public Works Week Resolution-Council Approval  

e. 2024 Parks Capital Update Recommendation-Council Approval 

f. 2026 EGLE Drinking Water Loan- Service Line Project-Intent to Apply  

 

9.     Public Comment  

            Please state your name and home address 

         Please limit comments to 3 minutes per individual presentation 

(City Council Rules of Procedure:  10/7/2011)        

 

      10.   Comments from the Mayor and City Council 

      11.   Reports from City Manager, City Attorney & Department Heads         

      12.   Adjournment     

 

American Disability Act Compliance: For access to open meetings of the City Council and any 

of its committees or subcommittees, the City of Roosevelt Park will provide necessary 

reasonable auxiliary aids and services, to individuals with disabilities who want to attend the 

meeting, upon twenty-four-hour notice to the City of Roosevelt Park.  Individuals with 

disabilities requiring auxiliary aids or services should contact the City of Roosevelt Park, City 

Clerk by writing or calling, 231-755-3721 or call the following: TDD: Dial 7-1-1 and request a 

representative to dial 231-755-3721.    



 
 

To:  Honorable Mayor and City Council 

From:  Jared Olson, City Manager   

Date:  May 10, 2024 

Subject:    Monday, May 13, 2024– CITY COUNCIL MEETING     

 

The following is information pertaining to items on the agenda for your meeting: 

COUNCIL WORK SESSION: 

 

1. Active Agenda Items 

 

COUNCIL MEETING: 

 

a. Downtown Development Authority Board Resignation-Council Acceptance- A member of the 

DDA Board has officially submitted their resignation as they have retired and are no longer eligible 

to serve on the board.  The Council is asked to accept their written resignation. 

 

b. Downtown Development Authority Board Application-Council Appointment- The attached 

applicant is was promoted within the same credit union as the aforementioned DDA board member 

and is requesting to replace their predecessor on the DDA Board.  City council is asked to consider 

the appointment. 

 

c. 2024 National Police Week Resolution-Council Approval- As National Police Week begins, the 

City Council is asked to pass the attached resolution of support. For 2024, this is observed from 

Sunday May 12th through Saturday May 18th.  

 

d. 2024 Public Works Week Resolution-Council Approval- As National Public Works Week 

approaches, the City Council is asked to pass the attached resolution of support. For 2024, this is 

observed from Sunday May 13th through Saturday May 25th. 

 

e. 2024 Parks Capital Update Recommendation-Council Approval- Over the last several months, the 

numerous 2024 Roosevelt Park Playground RFP proposals have been reviewed, vetted, and ultimately the 

Recreation and Parks Board has recommended a plan design for approval for the FY 2024 project.  The design 

and specifications are included. 
 

f. 2026 EGLE Drinking Water Loan- Service Line Project-Intent to Apply- As the attached 

publication further describes, there has been $61 million allocated to the State of Michigan for 

municipal drinking water systems to help replace lead service lines. The funds will be distributed 

through the Drinking Water State Revolving fund system and will be allocated as partial grants and 

partial long term low interest loans.  The first step into becoming eligible for these funds is to submit 

the FY 2026 Intent to Apply form. 
 

 
       

 

If you have questions, please contact me.   

 

City of Roosevelt Park 

A Proud Community 



CITY OF ROOSEVELT PARK 
CITY COUNCIL 

 MEETING MINUTES 
April 15, 2024 

 
This meeting was called to order by Mayor Aaron Langlois at 6:16 p.m. 
 
  
PRESENT: Council Members: Mayor Aaron Langlois, Mayor Pro-Tem Michael Sutton, Stacey  
                             Burmeister, Fawn Cruz, Matt Johnson  
                                   
 
STAFF: City Manager Jared Olson, City Clerk Ann Wisniewski, City Attorney Will Meier, Chief 

Shawn Bride 
 
ABSENT:             Diane Goodman, Noah Crossno  
   
WORK SESSION 
 
Council discussed Agenda Items: 

• Community Center Athletic Court Rehabilitation Bids – Council Approval 
• City Council Meeting Dates Discussion 
• List of Bills 

 
Special Guests:  

• Muskegon Greenways Task force – Muskegon County Bicycling Coalition  
 
Mayor Langlois called the Council meeting to order at 6:55 p.m. 
 
2024-71 ROLL CALL 
  City Clerk Ann Wisniewski called roll call. 
 
2024-72 INVOCATION 
  Council Member Burmeister provided the Invocation. 
 
2024-73 PUBLIC COMMENT ON AGENDA ITEMS 
  None   
 
2024-74 CONSENT AGENDA 

A motion was made by Council Member Burmeister to approve the consent agenda as 
written.  This motion was supported by Council Member Cruz. 

  Roll Call: 5 Ayes, 0 Nays, 2 absent (Goodman, Crossno) - Motion Passes 
         
2024-75 UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
  None  
 



 
2024-76 NEW BUSINESS 
 
  8A. Community Center Athletic Court Rehabilitation Bids- Council Approval                              
                             Council Member Burmeister moved to approve the quote from Tennis Courts Unlimited   
                             For the 2024 Community Center Court Rehabilitation Project.  This motion was  
                             Supported by Council Member Johnson. 
                             Roll Call: 5 Ayes, 0 Nays, 2 Absent (Goodman, Crossno) – Motion Passes 
 
                            8B.  City Council Meeting Dates Discussion  
                            Council discussed meeting date calendar.  No Action needed. 
                      
                                                         
2024-77 COUNCIL COMMENTS 
  Council members shared comments. 
  
2024-78 DEPARTMENT HEAD REPORTS 
  Department Heads shared comments. 
 
2024-79 PUBLIC COMMENTS 
  None 
 
2024-80            ADJOURNMENT 
  Mayor Langlois moved to adjourn the meeting at 7:13 p.m. This motion was 
                             supported by Mayor Pro-Tem Sutton and carried unanimously. 
 
 
 
    

Ann Wisniewski, City Clerk 



Invoice #

1/4

(231) 755-3721

ROOSEVELT PARK, MI 49441

900 OAK RIDGE ROAD

CITY OF ROOSEVELT PARK
A Proud Community

Monday, May 06, 2024
User: TREASURER
DB: Roosevelt Park

COUNCIL LIST

INVOICE AMTDESCRIPTIONVENDOR NAMECHECK NUMBER

4560(E) BANK OF AMERICA BUSINESS CARD

210.24 PRINTER - FRONT DESK 112-1425887-
1756268 114.99 TONER 112-3092448-
6392236 160.85 PAINT STRIPING LINE MACHINE 112-7322771-
4693800 52.47 MS OFFICE SUBSCRIPTION E0400RK0T3

(3.57)TAX REFUND 040924REFUND

Check Total 534.98 

4561(E) BANK OF AMERICA BUSINESS CARD

7.98 WATER 041824

Check Total 7.98 

4562(E) BANK OF AMERICA BUSINESS CARD

569.00 PD WEAPONS SUPPLIES 1667254

295.00 PD ONLINE TRAINING REGISTRATION 13219

Check Total 864.00 

4563(E) BLUE CARE NETWORK OF MI

1,641.36 RETIREE HEALTH CARE 241000001256

Check Total 1,641.36 

4564(E) BLUE CROSS BLUE SHIELD OF MICH

2,171.43 RETIREE HEALTH CARE 182327101

Check Total 2,171.43 

4565(E) CITY OF MUSKEGON-WATER DEPT

6,576.47 WATER USE - ACCT # 199340001 040224

10,297.92 WATER USE - ACCT # 199340201 040324

43.74 SEWER ACCT # 199342801 040324

1.50 SEWER ACCT # 199342701 040324

57.82 SEWER ACCT # 199342601 040324

Check Total 16,977.45 

4566(E) CONSUMERS ENERGY

42.88 2802 GLENSIDE BLVD 203144218115

70.34 2686 GLENSIDE BLVD 203144218114

Check Total 113.22 

4567(E) DTE ENERGY

431.08 GAS 900 OAKRIDGE RD 041124

Check Total 431.08 

4568(E) DTE ENERGY

260.70 GAS 3106 ROOSEVELT RD 041124

Check Total 260.70 

4569(E) DTE ENERGY

514.20 GAS 1572 GARRISON 041124

Check Total 514.20 

4570(E) HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES

113.80 CONCRETE, CAUTION TAPE, IRRIGATION SUPPL 041324

Check Total 113.80 

4571(E) LEAF

148.53 COPY MACHINE LEASE 16423395

Check Total 148.53 

4572(E) LINDE GAS & EQUIPMENT

53.67 ACETYLENE 42450432

Check Total 53.67 

4573(E) MET LIFE

347.10 LIFE/LTD INSURANCE 050124

Check Total 347.10 

4574(A) BORGMAN TREE SERVICE

7,250.00 TREE TRIMMING 4263



Invoice #

2/4

(231) 755-3721

ROOSEVELT PARK, MI 49441

900 OAK RIDGE ROAD

CITY OF ROOSEVELT PARK
A Proud Community

Monday, May 06, 2024
User: TREASURER
DB: Roosevelt Park

COUNCIL LIST

INVOICE AMTDESCRIPTIONVENDOR NAMECHECK NUMBER

Check Total 7,250.00 

4575(A) BRIDE, SHAWN

30.53 TRAINING MEALS 041124TRAVEL

Check Total 30.53 

4576(A) CORE & MAIN

227.50 CURB STOPS U651763

Check Total 227.50 

4577(A) DEDICATED PAINTERS OF WEST MICHIGAN

2,000.00 PAVILLION RESTORATION INV0152

Check Total 2,000.00 

4578(A) DEJONG CHAD

13.50 TRAINING LUNCH 040924TRAVEL

Check Total 13.50 

4579(A) HART INTERCIVIC

1,608.00 ELECTION TABULATOR SERVICE AND MAINTENAN 096323

Check Total 1,608.00 

4580(A) KENT COMMUNICATIONS INC

244.38 AV APPLICATION ENVELOPES 334194

Check Total 244.38 

4581(A) MUSKEGON CENTRAL DISPATCH 911

447.43 IT SERVICES - APRIL 2400001913

3,899.92 MAY DISPATCH FEES 2400002023

Check Total 4,347.35 

4582(A) MUSKEGON CHARTER TOWNSHIP

924.83 CODE ENFORCEMENT - MARCH 2400015765

Check Total 924.83 

4583(A) MUSKEGON CNTY TREASURER

102.00 DOG LICENSES 0000202617

8,579.00 ASSESSING SERVICES APRIL-JUNE 0000202891

35,100.00 WASTE WATER/BOND PMTS WWUB033124

Check Total 43,781.00 

4584(A) OFFICE MACHINES CO., INC.

98.06 COPY MACHINE SERVICE INV73120

Check Total 98.06 

4585(A) PREIN & NEWHOF, P.C

1,115.25 GLENSIDE BLVD - CLOSE OUT 81236

12,204.50 BROADWAY/MAPLE GROVE 81242

Check Total 13,319.75 

4586(A) WEST MICHIGAN LOCK & DOOR

1,829.00 DOOR CLOSERS, LOCK REPAIR, ACCESS CONTRO 5659

Check Total 1,829.00 

4587(A) WEST MICHIGAN UNIFORM

50.00 DPW UNIFORM CLEANING 5817115

50.00 DPW UNIFORM CLEANING 5818831

Check Total 100.00 

4588(A) WINDEMULLER

300.00 TRAFFIC SIGNAL MAINTENANCE 235207

Check Total 300.00 

38310 AAA LAWN CARE INC

504.00 BALLFIELD FERTILIZATION 356241

Check Total 504.00 

38311 BS&A SOFTWARE

4,656.00 AP, TAX, MISC REC, PAYROLL, TIMESHEETS, 153865



Invoice #

3/4

(231) 755-3721

ROOSEVELT PARK, MI 49441

900 OAK RIDGE ROAD

CITY OF ROOSEVELT PARK
A Proud Community

Monday, May 06, 2024
User: TREASURER
DB: Roosevelt Park

COUNCIL LIST

INVOICE AMTDESCRIPTIONVENDOR NAMECHECK NUMBER

Check Total 4,656.00 

38312 CITY OF MUSKEGON DPW

6,567.01 2016 SILVERADO TRANSMISSION 983

Check Total 6,567.01 

38313 GROENINK'S HARDWARE

383.34 FERTILIZER 102129

Check Total 383.34 

38314 JARED OLSON

300.00 MME CONFERENCE LODGING REIMBURSEMENT 071624

Check Total 300.00 

38315 MLIVE MEDIA GROUP

430.00 RFP - ROYAL OAK/EASTLAND 0010855226

Check Total 430.00 

38316 MUSKEGON COUNTY ROAD COMMISSION

200.00 TRAFFIC SIGNAL MAINTENANCE BIDDING AGREE 704520

Check Total 200.00 

38317 P.M. BLOUGH, INC.

2,865.00 GRANT APPLICATION CONSULTING 041624

Check Total 2,865.00 

38318 W.M.C.J.T.C. ATTN: LORI BOEVE

348.81 MCOLES SPRING DISTRIBUTION 5740

Check Total 348.81 

38319 WATKINS ROSS & CO

1,200.00 OPEB ACTUARIAL ROLL FORWARD 94277

Check Total 1,200.00 

4589(E) BANK OF AMERICA BUSINESS CARD

15.69 SHIPPING - PD 050124

Check Total 15.69 

4590(E) CONSUMERS ENERGY

2,624.81 1000 0015 6057 936 OAKRIDGE GUL 2 206436557842

Check Total 2,624.81 

4591(E) CONSUMERS ENERGY

19.54 1000 0017 0686 3106 ROOSEVELT RD 206703445217

Check Total 19.54 

4592(E) CONSUMERS ENERGY

258.98 1000 0038 5011 TRAFFIC LIGHTS 207059003394

Check Total 258.98 

4593(E) CONSUMERS ENERGY

1,726.91 1030 2926 0835 49441 LED LIGHT RD 202343337673

Check Total 1,726.91 

4594(E) WEX BANK

2,848.53 GAS(DPW 362.416, PD 521.833) 96877244

Check Total 2,848.53 

4595(A) ASPHALT PAVING, INC.

84.80 PATCH API-0003219

Check Total 84.80 

4596(A) DIBBLE, KATE

196.98 MMTA CONFERENCE TRAVEL TRAVEL0524

75.20 DENTAL REIMBURSEMENT 042224DENTAL

Check Total 272.18 

4597(A) EMERGENCY SERVICES LLC

800.00 MONTHLY LABOR MAINTENENCE 21188

Check Total 800.00 



Invoice #

4/4

(231) 755-3721

ROOSEVELT PARK, MI 49441

900 OAK RIDGE ROAD

CITY OF ROOSEVELT PARK
A Proud Community

Monday, May 06, 2024
User: TREASURER
DB: Roosevelt Park

COUNCIL LIST

INVOICE AMTDESCRIPTIONVENDOR NAMECHECK NUMBER

4598(A) FLEX ADMINISTRATORS, INC.

43.50 FLEXIBLE SPENDING ADMINISTRATION 1068439

Check Total 43.50 

4599(A) KENT COMMUNICATIONS INC

265.76 MAIL COURIER SERVICES - APRIL 8876-158740

Check Total 265.76 

4600(A) KERKSTRA PORTABLE RESTROOMS

210.00 PORTABLE RESTROOM 245067

Check Total 210.00 

4601(A) MUSKEGON CENTRAL DISPATCH 911

447.43 IT SUPPORT 2400002043

Check Total 447.43 

4602(A) PLANTENGA'S CLEANERS

15.10 PD UNIFORM CLEANING 0424

Check Total 15.10 

4603(A) REPUBLIC SERVICES

16,001.25 WASTE REMOVAL 0240-
009582411Check Total 16,001.25 

4604(A) VANHOEVEN, BEN

80.64 VISION REIMBURSEMENT 032024

Check Total 80.64 

4605(A) WEST MICHIGAN UNIFORM

50.00 DPW UNIFORM CLEANING 5820574

Check Total 50.00 

38320 ACE HARDWARE

455.98 PRUNING SAW/LEAF BLOWER 146962/1

529.00 PUSH MOWER 146963/1

Check Total 984.98 

38321 ASHLEY IRRIGATION

729.60 BASEBALL FIELD/ISLAND IRRIGATION 13240

Check Total 729.60 

38322 CMP DISTRIBUTORS, INC.

377.00 GLOCK MAGAZINES 014847

651.80 HOLSTERS 014936

Check Total 1,028.80 

38323 D & J SEWER CLEANERS

1,300.00 WATER SERVICE LINE REPLACEMENT - 1370 GR 8275

1,500.00 WATER SERVICE LINE REPLACEMENT - 1300 GR 8276

1,700.00 WATER SERVICE LINE REPLACEMENT - 2962 EA 8286

500.00 WATER SERVICE LINE VERIFICATION - 2968 E 8287

500.00 WATER SERVICE LINE VERIFICATION - 2997 C 8288

Check Total 5,500.00 

38324 VALLEY CITY SIGN

4,811.00 GLENSIDE BLVD ENTRANCE SIGN INV00081496

Check Total 4,811.00 

38325 WHITE RIVER ELECTRIC LLC

9,552.26 CLOCK TOWER LIGHTING/OUTLETS 2635

Check Total 9,552.26 

Report Total 166,079.32 



Agenda Item____8a___

CITY OF ROOSEVELT PARK 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

May 13, 2024

Item: DDA Board Member Resignation-Pam Hanophy Date: May 13, 2024 

Summary: Unfortunately, Ms. Pam Hanophy has submitted his letter of resignation from the City 

of Roosevelt Park Downtown Development Authority board due to her retiring from her position 

and thus, formal acceptance from the City Council is needed. 

Pam served on the board for several years and was the CEO of SB Credit Union and on the Board 

of Directors for Service 1 Credit Union.  She has recommended the appointment of Kim Bourdo 

who is the now current CEO of Service 1 Credit Union to fill her vacancy. 

Financial Impact:  none 

Recommendation:  Accept the resignation of Pam Hanophy with regret from the City of 

Roosevelt Parks Downtown Development. 

Signature:  Title: City Manager 



From: Ann M. Wisniewski
To: Jared D. Olson
Subject: FW: resignation
Date: Tuesday, April 30, 2024 9:52:42 AM

From: pam Hanophy 
Sent: Tuesday, April 30, 2024 9:52 AM
To: Ann M. Wisniewski 
Subject: Re: resignation

[EXTERNAL EMAIL] Please exercise caution with links and attachments.

Ann:  Please accept my resignation from DDA board of Roosevelt Park effective immediately.  We have moved to 
Grand Haven.  I have enjoyed my time serving and wish you all the best.   Pamela Hanophy

Get Outlook for iOS

From: Ann M. Wisniewski 
Sent: Monday, April 29, 2024 3:41:37 PM
To: 'pam Hanophy'
Subject: resignation

Hey Pam
Just a friendly reminder I need an email with your resignation from the DDA please.

Thank you

Ann Wisniewski
City Clerk
City of Roosevelt Park

Phone 231-755-3721 
Web www.rooseveltpark.org
  Email Clerk@rooseveltpark.org
900 Oak Ridge Rd.  Muskegon, MI. 49441

mailto:AWisniewski@rooseveltpark.org
mailto:JOlson@rooseveltpark.org
https://aka.ms/o0ukef
http://www.rooseveltpark.org/
mailto:Clerk@rooseveltpark.org


Agenda Item____8b____ 

CITY OF ROOSEVELT PARK 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

May 13, 2024 

Item: DDA Board Appointment-Council Approval Date:  May 13, 2024 

Summary:  In accordance with Section 3.13 of the City Charter, the Mayor appoints members 

to citizen boards and commissions, with the advice and consent of the Council.   

The City’s Downtown Development Authority has one vacancy due to the retirement of Pam 

Hanophy who was the previous CEO of Service 1 Credit Union (formally SB Credit Union) 

here in Roosevelt Park.  Her replacement, Ms. Kim Bourdo, who is the current CEO of 

Service 1 Credit Union has requested to fill the open roll and has been recommended by Pam 

Hanophy to replace her. 

Financial Impact:  None 

Recommendation:  Move to appoint the Service 1 Credit Union, Kim Bourdo, to the DDA 

Board of Directors for the vacant four-year term expiring December of 2024. 

Signature:  Title:  City Manager 



Agenda Item____8c____ 

CITY OF ROOSEVELT PARK 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

May 13, 2024 

Item: Authorize Resolution of National Police Week 2024 Date:  May 13, 2024 

Summary: In 1962, President John F. Kennedy proclaimed May 15 as National Peace 

Officers Memorial Day and the calendar week in which May 15 falls, as National Police 

Week.  Established by a joint resolution of Congress in 1962, National Police Week pays 

special recognition to those law enforcement officers who have lost their lives in the line of 

duty for the safety and protection of others.   

The Roosevelt Park Police Department has unfortunately added a name to the national register 

when we lost Sergeant Willaim F. Delmar in the line of duty on October 1, 1966.   

The Council is asked to approve the attached resolution in recognition of local efforts and 

dedication to the Roosevelt Park community by the Roosevelt Park Police Department and 

those that surround us. Also included is the flyer for the Muskegon County Police Memorial 

Service that will be held during the week. 

Financial Impact:  None.  

Recommendation:  Adopt by resolution with appreciation and acknowledgment the 

dedication and support of law enforcement along with observation of National Police Week 

2024. 

Signature:  Title:  City Manager 



 
 

CITY OF ROOSEVELT PARK 

RESOLUTION 24-04 

National Police Week 2024 Acknowledgement and Observation 
 

WHEAREAS, in 1962, President Kennedy proclaimed May 15 as National Peace Officers Memorial Day 

and the calendar week in which May 15 falls, as National Police Week; and 

WHEAREAS,  there are approximately 800,000 law enforcement officers serving in communities across 

the United States, including the dedicated members and employees of the City of Roosevelt Park Police 

Department; and 

WHEAREAS, the members of the City of Roosevelt Park Police Department play an important role in 

safeguarding the both the residents, businesses, and visitors within of our community; and 

WHEAREAS, since the first recorded death in 1791, over 20,000 law enforcement officers in the United 

States have made the ultimate sacrifice and been killed in the line of duty; and 

WHEAREAS, the Roosevelt Park Police Department tragically lost one of its own in Sergeant William F. 

Delmar on October 1, 1966; and 

WHEAREAS,  May 15 is designated as Peace Officers Memorial Day, in honor of all fallen officers and 

their families both locally and nationwide; and 

NOW, THEREFORE,  the City Council of the City of Roosevelt Park, do hereby proclaim the week of 

May 12-18, 2024 as National Police Week in the City of Roosevelt Park and encourage all citizens to 

observe and acknowledge the service of law enforcement officers in our community and in the nation. 

 

RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED. 

YEAS:             

NAYS:            

ABSTAIN:             

   

               

            Ann Wisniewski, City Clerk 

City of Roosevelt 

Park 

   A Proud 
Community 



20242024
Muskegon Police OfficersMuskegon Police Officers

Memorial ServiceMemorial Service

Wednesday, May 15th, 2024
6:30 p.m.

Michael E. Kobza Hall of Justice
990 Terrace Street, Muskegon

Public Welcome



Agenda Item____8d____ 

CITY OF ROOSEVELT PARK 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

May 13, 2024 

Item: Authorize Resolution-observance of Public Works Week 2024 Date:  May 13, 2024 

Summary: National Public Works Week recognizes the planning, building, and management 

of local communities and the infrastructure that keeps our communities running smoothly day 

in and day out.  The responsibilities of the Roosevelt Park Public Works Department come in 

many forms and is a constant undertaking.  Every single employee within our department 

contributes to the current and future success of the city, for which we are thankful. 

Our team currently wears many hats, some literally when they oversee our streets, parks, 

sidewalks, water system, wastewater collection network, and numerous other daily duties.  

This yea, the official observation of National Public Works Week is May 19th through the 25th. 

Financial Impact:  None.  

Recommendation:  Adopt by resolution with appreciation and acknowledgment the 

dedication and support of entire Department of Public Works in observation of National 

Public Works Week 2024. 

Signature:  Title:  City Manager 



CITY OF ROOSEVELT PARK 

RESOLUTION 24-05 

Public Works Week 2024 Acknowledgement and Observation 

Whereas, the American Public Works Association (APWA) will celebrate the 64th Annual National 

Public Works Week, which will be held the third week in May which falls between May 19th and 25th, 

and  

Whereas, National Public Works Week is a celebration of the public works employees who make our 

community better by connecting, collaborating, and responding to provide the services we as a City 

depend on; and  

Whereas, public works professionals focus on infrastructure and services that are of vital importance to 

a sustainable and resilient City; and  

Whereas, the health, safety, and comfort of this community greatly depends on the services they provide 

such as safe, clean drinking water and solid waste and street maintenance to help the City of Roosevelt 

Park a clean and livable city; and 

Whereas, they manage the stormwater and sanitary sewer network to protect and improve the water 

quality of our river, lakes, and creeks; and  

Whereas, public works employees design, build, and maintain the miles of streets, parks, bike 
ways, sidewalks, and the water system, wastewater collection, streets, and all facilities to safely keep 

the city moving; and  

Whereas, every day public works employees take pride in making Roosevelt Park better; Now, 

Therefore, Be It Resolved by The City Council of The City of Roosevelt Park: That the City Council 

acknowledges the significant daily contribution that the employees within the Public Works Department 

of the City of Roosevelt Park provide to the citizens and businesses throughout the City during National 

Public Works Week. 

RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED. 

YEAS:  

NAYS: 

ABSTAIN: 

  Ann Wisniewski, City Clerk 

City of Roosevelt 

Park 

   A Proud 
Community 



Agenda Item__8e_____

CITY OF ROOSEVELT PARK 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

May 13, 2024

Item:2024 Capital Parks Project Approval- Rec. and Parks Board Date:  May 13, 2024 

With the second project being undertaken utilizing the voter approved Parks and Recreation Capital 

Improvement millage, the Recreation and Parks Commission created a Requested for Proposal (RFP), 

published it throughout several different avenues, and received a strong response.  Overall, eight 

different playground companies responded with nearly twenty-five actual design proposals. 

As this was a unique opportunity in that the cost was already budgeted at $120,000, the RFP was to 

choose the best, most playable, and strongest design proposal as opposed to only being based solely 

on the total cost factor.  This years projects are split between two smaller parks in H.D. Carsell Park 

located between Haverhill and Chapel along with Post Road Park.  Sealed bids were due on March 

20th and were opened during a public bid opening at City Hall.  

As nearly a month of review and discussion, the Recreation and Parks Commission has recommended 

the City Council approve the design from ParkVision for a version of their “Option 2” for both 

Carsell and Post Road Park The board found their design to best fit the parks, achievable in the 

implementation timeframe of FY 2024, and cover several universal access areas that were not part of 

the previous park design.  They also allow for new types of recreational opportunities within our 

parks by adding equipment that is currently not in our system (Carsell Park) and focusing a park 

solely on younger children and families (Post Road design). 

There were two changes to the design that the board wished to complete, which was the removal of 

two items of lesser play value and the inclusion of two additional higher play value items.  The sites 

were also altered from their original design to limit the amount of engineered wood fiber that would 

be needed. 

As stated in the Request for Proposal, the city will still contract out directly the engineered wood 

fiber chips along with completing the rehab/replacement of the sprinkler system.  Sidewalk work and 

ADA sized sidewalk expansion will also be included following the construction of the playgrounds.

Financial Impact: $120,000 was budgeted out of the Parks Capital Expenditure line for this 

purchase, which will account for $117,892.40.  Overall, this proposal is $2,108 under the budgeted 

amount. 

Recommendation: The Roosevelt Park Recreation and Parks Board has recommended the approval 

of the attached modified design from ParkVision as presented and authorize the City Manager and 

City Clerk to finalize all needed purchase and order documents.  

Signature:  
Title:  City Manager 

























































































































Agenda Item___8f____

CITY OF ROOSEVELT PARK 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

May 13, 2024

FY26 EGLE Drinking Water Loan-Service Line Replacement Project Date: May 13, 2024 

Summary: As the attached publication further describes, there has been $61 million 

allocated to the State of Michigan for municipal drinking water systems to help replace 

lead service lines. The funds will be distributed through the Drinking Water State 

Revolving fund system and will be allocated as partial grants and partial long term low 

interest loans. As of now, the very informal scope of this project would be to fund the 

remainder of our state mandated service line replacement program along with installation 

of several blocks of watermain to help with the service line replacement. 

 The first step into becoming eligible for these funds is to submit the FY 2026 Intent to 

Apply (ITA) form.  As of now this is a “loan program” however it is not uncommon for 

portions of the loan to be converted into a grant which will become clearer once we get 

into the formal submittal process.  Submitting the formal Intent to Apply (ITA) notice 

does not mandate our involvement nor does it set the scope of work in stone.   

Financial Impact:  None for FY 24 or FY 25.

Recommendation:  Authorize staff to complete the FY2026 Drinking Water Revolving Fund 

(DWRF) Intent to Apply for funds to assist in funding of the state mandated water service line 

replacement. 

Signature:  Title: City Manager 



State awarded $61 million from the Bipartisan
Infrastructure Law to help communities remove
lead service lines

May 02, 2024

Media Contact:

Jeff Johnston

EGLE Public Information Of�cer

JohnstonJ14@Michigan.gov

517-231-9304

EGLE efforts recognized nationally as Michigan

designated leading state with an “A” grade in

incorporating equity into water infrastructure funding

programs

The State of Michigan has been allotted $61.9 million by the U.S. Environmental

Protection Agency (EPA) for lead water service line removal projects. This

announcement came on the heels of a report giving Michigan an “A” grade in

 With this announcement, theintegrating water equity into its water funding programs.

federal Bipartisan Infrastructure Law (BIL) will have injected $695 million into water

infrastructure projects in cities, towns, and villages across the state. 

“Governor Whitmer and I are working hard to ensure Michiganders know their water is

safe,” said Lt. Governor Garlin Gilchrist II. “We’ve invested hundreds of millions to protect

the quality of drinking water, upgrade water infrastructure, and replace lead service lines

EGLE

5/3/24, 10:34 AM State awarded $61 million from the Bipartisan Infrastructure Law to help communities remove lead service lines

https://www.michigan.gov/egle/newsroom/press-releases/2024/05/02/state-awarded-61-million#:~:text=The State of Michigan has,into its water fundin… 1/8

mailto:JohnstonJ14@Michigan.gov
https://www.whitehouse.gov/briefing-room/statements-releases/2024/05/02/fact-sheet-biden-harris-administration-announces-3-billion-to-replace-toxic-lead-pipes-and-deliver-clean-drinking-water-to-communities-across-the-country/
https://www.whitehouse.gov/briefing-room/statements-releases/2024/05/02/fact-sheet-biden-harris-administration-announces-3-billion-to-replace-toxic-lead-pipes-and-deliver-clean-drinking-water-to-communities-across-the-country/
https://www.whitehouse.gov/briefing-room/statements-releases/2024/05/02/fact-sheet-biden-harris-administration-announces-3-billion-to-replace-toxic-lead-pipes-and-deliver-clean-drinking-water-to-communities-across-the-country/
https://www.whitehouse.gov/briefing-room/statements-releases/2024/05/02/fact-sheet-biden-harris-administration-announces-3-billion-to-replace-toxic-lead-pipes-and-deliver-clean-drinking-water-to-communities-across-the-country/


in communities across Michigan. We also established the strongest lead and copper

rules for drinking water in the country. Today’s $61.9 million investment by the Biden

Administration will provide crucial support as we continue to replace lead lines and

protect drinking water for Michigan families. Governor Whitmer and I will keep standing

tall for clean drinking water in Michigan.”

The new funding will run through the Michigan Department of Environment, Great

Lakes, and Energy’s (EGLE) Drinking Water State Revolving Fund (SRF) and support the

state’s MI Clean Water Plan. These new resources complement state and local efforts to

accelerate lead service line removal, protecting families from lead contamination,

rebuilding our infrastructure, and supporting good-paying jobs. More than half of EGLE’s

budget is returned to communities in the form of grants and loans.

“The State of Michigan is committed to protect every family from lead contamination

and build con�dence in our drinking water systems,” said EGLE Director Phil Roos.

“Under Governor Whitmer’s leadership, the state has leveraged billions in state and

federal resources to rebuild Michigan’s water infrastructure and remove lead pipes, but

our work isn’t done. These additional resources from the Bipartisan Infrastructure Law

will help us increase the pace of rebuilding and modernizing Michigan’s water

infrastructure.”

EGLE’s Drinking Water SRF will administer these new resources. The Drinking Water SRF

is a low-interest loan program to help public water systems �nance the costs of

replacement and repair of drinking water infrastructure projects designed to protect

public health and achieve or maintain compliance with federal Safe Drinking Water Act

requirements.

This week, Michigan was named a top state and given an “A” grade in incorporating

equity into administering state water infrastructure funds and overall effectiveness of

administering funds. This recognition builds on years of efforts, including recent

bipartisan legislative changes, to ensure EGLE’s water infrastructure dollars and SRF

programs are easy for communities to access, go as far as possible, and are targeted to

the communities with the most need.

“President Biden’s commitment to revitalizing America’s infrastructure has provided

Michigan with a transformative opportunity,” said Zachary Kolodin, chief infrastructure

of�cer and director of the Michigan Infrastructure Of�ce. “By investing federal dollars in

our aging water infrastructure, we’re ensuring clean drinking water for families and

creating local, sustainable jobs that are vital to our communities’ growth and

prosperity.” 

5/3/24, 10:34 AM State awarded $61 million from the Bipartisan Infrastructure Law to help communities remove lead service lines

https://www.michigan.gov/egle/newsroom/press-releases/2024/05/02/state-awarded-61-million#:~:text=The State of Michigan has,into its water fundin… 2/8

https://www.michigan.gov/egle/regulatory-assistance/grants-and-financing/drinking-water-state-revolving-fund
https://www.michigan.gov/egle/regulatory-assistance/grants-and-financing/drinking-water-state-revolving-fund
https://www.michigan.gov/egle/regulatory-assistance/grants-and-financing/drinking-water-state-revolving-fund
https://www.michigan.gov/egle/regulatory-assistance/grants-and-financing/mi-clean-water-plan
https://www.michigan.gov/egle/regulatory-assistance/grants-and-financing/mi-clean-water-plan
https://www.nrdc.org/press-releases/nrdc-grades-equity-state-water-infrastructure-policies-finds-disadvantaged-0
https://www.michigan.gov/whitmer/news/press-releases/2022/06/30/whitmer-signs-bipartisan-package-expanding-community-access-to-water-infrastructure-funding
https://www.michigan.gov/whitmer/news/press-releases/2022/06/30/whitmer-signs-bipartisan-package-expanding-community-access-to-water-infrastructure-funding


Department of Environment, Great Lakes, and Energy Finance

Grants and Loans Water Infrastructure Funding and Financing

MI Newswire Department of Environment Great Lakes and Energy

Press Release

This BIL investment comes on the tail of Governor Gretchen Whitmer announcing a

$290 million expansion of the MI Clean Water Plan utilizing existing bonding authority

from the bipartisan, voter-approved 2002 Great Lakes Water Quality Protection Bond to

support critical water infrastructure projects — from lead service line removals to

wastewater plant rehabilitations — in communities across the state. 

Additionally, in February, the Governor proposed an executive budget recommendation

that included over $83 million for water infrastructure improvements, $40 million of

which is focused on enabling lead service line removal projects; and additional

employees in EGLE’s Drinking Water Program to ensure everyone’s drinking water is

protected. 

Since January 2019, the State of Michigan has been able to invest over $4 billion to

upgrade drinking water, stormwater, and wastewater facilities across the state. 

While the state has made signi�cant investments, they are not enough to meet the

needs of Michigan communities. Most of the state’s water systems are over 50 years old,

and a signi�cant portion are approaching 100 years of service life. Recent reports have

highlighted that Michigan has an annual gap of between $860 million to $1.1 billion in

water infrastructure needs due to decades of deferred maintenance. The need from

communities across the state is substantial. 

In addition to investing in our infrastructure, the EPA has found that every $1 million

invested in water infrastructure supports 15 jobs, and studies have shown that every $1

invested in water infrastructure brings $6 in economic returns. 

Find more information on the state’s MI Clean Water Plan webpage and in the EPA’s announcement.

Related News

5/3/24, 10:34 AM State awarded $61 million from the Bipartisan Infrastructure Law to help communities remove lead service lines

https://www.michigan.gov/egle/newsroom/press-releases/2024/05/02/state-awarded-61-million#:~:text=The State of Michigan has,into its water fundin… 3/8

https://www.michigan.gov/egle/newsroom/press-releases#agency=edc2d032dc9748de83220f6483643d37%20Department%20of%20Environment,%20Great%20Lakes,%20and%20Energy
https://www.michigan.gov/egle/newsroom/press-releases#division=a19f2b19f50742dd99d3b7ba932bf518%20Finance
https://www.michigan.gov/egle/newsroom/press-releases#egletopics=8f4abc3a25544a1cb350346b8d4ea2f8%20Grants%20and%20Loans
https://www.michigan.gov/egle/newsroom/press-releases#egletopics=e32af7c5e4dd4d1093e93607f1cc7869%20Water%20Infrastructure%20Funding%20and%20Financing
https://www.michigan.gov/egle/newsroom/press-releases#tagsearch=50fc9eb2c60140df85e01e8585e355c5%20MI%20Newswire
https://www.michigan.gov/egle/newsroom/press-releases#minewswireagency=aaf5c51293714f159a21ae104ff26c0c%20Department%20of%20Environment%20Great%20Lakes%20and%20Energy
https://www.michigan.gov/egle/newsroom/press-releases#jointnews=7f14654ef35048ff8efd06966c640dcf%20Press%20Release
https://www.michigan.gov/egle/newsroom/press-releases/2024/04/22/mcwp-expansion
https://www.michigan.gov/egle/newsroom/press-releases/2024/04/22/mcwp-expansion
https://www.michigan.gov/egle/newsroom/press-releases/2024/04/22/mcwp-expansion
https://www.michigan.gov/whitmer/news/press-releases/2024/02/07/whitmer-fy25-budget-a-roadmap-for-making-it-in-michigan
https://www.michigan.gov/egle/regulatory-assistance/grants-and-financing/mi-clean-water-plan
https://www.epa.gov/newsreleases/biden-harris-administration-announces-3-billion-lead-pipe-replacement-advance-safe


Michigan.gov/EGLE Page 1 of 3 EQP6580 (Rev. 04/2024) 

MICHIGAN DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENT, GREAT LAKES, AND ENERGY
Finance Division

FISCAL YEAR 2026 INTENT TO APPLY FORM

This form must be submitted by all applicants seeking financing through the State Revolving Fund 
programs in fiscal year (FY) 2026 (October 1, 2025 – September 30, 2026). This includes the 
Drinking Water State Revolving Fund (DWSRF), Clean Water State Revolving Fund (CWSRF), and 
Strategic Water Quality Initiatives Fund (SWQIF). The Intent to Apply form may be submitted at any 
time but is due on or before November 1, 2024. Applicants must complete a separate form for 
CWSRF and DWSRF, if applying for both.

This document is meant only to be a preview of the information necessary to complete the ITA Form. 
You must complete the electronic FY 2026 ITA form to submit an ITA for consideration.

General Information
Items marked with an asterisk (*) will be required when completing the form.

Date Submitted: will be auto-generated. ITA Tracking Number: will be auto-generated.

Is this project a carry-over from a plan submitted within the previous five fiscal years*? 
Yes No Unknown

If yes, please list the assigned SRF project number, if known: 

Have project components such as scope or costs changed? Yes No

If yes, please describe any changes to the previously submitted plan: 

Project Name*:  Roosevelt Park Service Line and Water System Replacement 

Project Need* (include the public health and/or water quality issue being addressed): 

FY26 Project Scope* (include the project that will be financed by a loan in FY26):

County*: 

Title*: 

Municipal Applicant Legal Name*: 

Applicant Contact Person Name*: 

Phone Number*:  231-755-3721 Email*: 

x

Replacement of service lines and main per Michigan Lead and Copper Statute

City of Roosevelt Park

Jared Olson

Muskegon

City Manager



Michigan.gov/EGLE Page 2 of 3 EQP6580 (Rev. 04/2024) 

Alternative Email (additional email you want to receive info about your ITA): 

Consulting Engineer Name: Firm: 

Phone Number: Email: 

Project Information 

Project funding source*: 
Clean Water State Revolving Fund
Drinking Water State Revolving Fund
Strategic Water Quality Initiatives Fund

Treatment Facility Name (if applicable):   

Will the proposed project result in a new or increased discharge requiring NPDES permit issuance? 
Yes No Unknown

Are you planning on constructing a new well? Yes  No

Proposed Construction Start Date* (month, year): 

Estimated Total Project Cost: $  

FY 2026 Estimated Total Project Cost* (FY 2026 loan amount): $ 

FY 2027-2030 Estimated Total Project Cost (future SRF loans): $ 

FY 2026 Lead Service Line Replacement Cost: $ 

FY 2026 Emerging Contaminant Cost: $  
Projects addressing perfluoroalkyl and polyfluoroalkyl (PFAS) substances or items from EPA's 
Contaminant Candidate List. For more information, see EPA's CWSRF Emerging Contaminant FAQ.

Identify additional funding sources being used on the project? (check all that apply)
MDOT MEDC USDA Other:

Identify any completed project-related planning documents (check all that apply): 
Capital Improvements Plan Asset Management Plan
Preliminary Engineering Report Environmental Report Project Plan
Infiltration & Inflow Study Sanitary Sewer Evaluation Study NASSCO Report
Watershed Management Plan Master Plan Reliability Study DSMI
Other:

Treasurer@rooseveltpark.org

x

N/A

x

x

$1.75 Million

April 1, 2026

$1.6 milion

$0

$950,000

N/A

x

x



Michigan.gov/EGLE Page 3 of 3 EQP6580 (Rev. 04/2024) 

Additional Information

Overburdened Community Status Determination Worksheets for FY 2026 cannot be completed until 
early 2025. Once the form is available, it will be posted to the SRF: Affordability Criteria website and 
information will be sent to all applicants. Note that a new form is required every year for all applicants.

Please note: Applicants for CWSRF funding may be required to use a Qualifications-based Selection 
(QBS) process to select and hire an architectural and engineering firm for those costs to be eligible 
for CWSRF funding. This includes planning, design engineering and construction engineering 
services. Your assigned project manager will discuss these requirements in more detail.

After your submission is received, you will be contacted by an assigned EGLE Water Infrastructure 
Funding and Financing Section (WIFFS) project manager within the next couple weeks to discuss the 
next steps. The project manager can help to identify project funding opportunities, challenges, and 
project planning guidance to assist the efforts of the applicant and their consulting engineer. 

For more information or questions, please visit our website at Michigan.gov/CWSRF and
Michigan.gov/DWSRF, or watch the State Revolving Fund Informational Video Series. You may also 
contact WIFFS at 517-284-5433 or EGLE-WIFFS@Michigan.gov or the SRF Project Manager located 
in your EGLE District Office. 

______________________________________________________________________________________

If you need this information in an alternate format, contact EGLE-Accessibility@Michigan.gov or 
call 800-662-9278.

EGLE does not discriminate on the basis of race, sex, religion, age, national origin, color, marital 
status, disability, political beliefs, height, weight, genetic information, or sexual orientation in the 
administration of any of its programs or activities, and prohibits intimidation and retaliation, as 
required by applicable laws and regulations.

This form and its contents are subject to the Freedom of Information Act and may be released to 
the public.



Informational Updates 

The following documents are informational updates and documents relating to our community.  They are 
for your information only and no action is requested. 

City of Roosevelt Park 

A Proud Community 



 

  

April 2024 

Shawn C. Bride 

Chief of Police 

MONTHLY REPORTS 



Chief’s Monthly Summary 

April 2024 saw an uptick in the number of frauds and larcenies fielded by staff, with all occurring within 

our business corridors.  Calls for service across the City were up significantly for the month.  However, 

this was the first month in the last few years where we experienced no thefts from residences, no 

neighbor disputes, and only one report of disorderly conduct.  That disorderly conduct issue was a 

couple’s loud argument at one of our apartment complexes.  This reflects greatly on the quality and 

even temperament of the Citizens of Roosevelt Park. 

All staff have undergone the basic training for our new Records Management System, Central Square.  

Several of our staff will be attending more advanced training for more specialized aspects of the system.   

All staff are now able to “practice” in the new system, and I have every confidence that we will 

experience little or no issues when the switch is thrown on the morning of June 4th and we “Go Live” 

Countywide.  Records Manager Smiley and I are routinely receiving calls and emails from area agencies, 

big and small, seeking tutelage and guidance.   My goal is that the staff of Roosevelt Park PD take a 

leadership role and become system subject matter experts, and share that information and skill with our 

sister agencies.  

It has become clear to me that the resurgence of our Department is the result of meeting citizen and 

business needs.  Proactive approaches have led to the formation of strong neighborhood ties and 

cooperative interdepartmental initiatives. This has set the stage for staff to grow professionally, as they 

collectively exhibit an enthusiasm for improvement.  It is our great pleasure to be part of a City 

Government that perpetually acts with a commitment to exceeding community needs through 

thoughtful planning and vision which continues to improve the quality of life for those who live and 

work here. 

On behalf of the staff of RPPD, I would like to thank you all once again for your support and your trust in 

us.  We appreciate the opportunities to exhibit for you, our residents, visitors, and business partners, 

“Roosevelt Park Excellence.”                

Shawn Bride, 

Chief of Police           

                                                                          

 



Calls for Service:

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Total

2024 791 781 770 831 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3173

2023 646 562 662 698 756 748 787 686 663 596 634 579 8017

2022 242 260 342 267 442 357 449 416 449 451 425 561 4661

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

Ja
n
‐2
2

Fe
b
‐2
2

M
ar
‐2
2

A
p
r‐
2
2

M
ay
‐2
2

Ju
n
‐2
2

Ju
l‐
2
2

A
u
g‐
2
2

Se
p
‐2
2

O
ct
‐2
2

N
o
v‐
2
2

D
ec
‐2
2

Ja
n
‐2
3

Fe
b
‐2
3

M
ar
‐2
3

A
p
r‐
2
3

M
ay
‐2
3

Ju
n
‐2
3

Ju
l‐
2
3

A
u
g‐
2
3

Se
p
‐2
3

O
ct
‐2
3

N
o
v‐
2
3

D
ec
‐2
3

Ja
n
‐2
4

Fe
b
‐2
4

M
ar
‐2
4

A
p
r‐
2
4

M
ay
‐2
4

Ju
n
‐2
4

Ju
l‐
2
4

A
u
g‐
2
4

Se
p
‐2
4

O
ct
‐2
4

N
o
v‐
2
4

D
ec
‐2
4

Ja
n
‐2
5

Calls for Service



Traffic Safety Activities

Total Traffic Stops:

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Total

2024 157 197 98 119 571

2023 188 116 118 157 231 167 237 178 150 113 98 77 1830

2022 11 20 67 33 140 86 84 107 70 117 104 139 978

Total Citations Issued:

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Total

2024 98 135 80 95 408

2023 152 116 96 123 129 120 169 149 140 138 85 82 1499

2022 8 5 34 21 42 49 71 59 61 81 95 133 659

High, 237

Low, 11
0

50

100

150

200

250

Ja
n
‐2
2

Fe
b
‐2
2

M
ar
‐2
2

A
p
r‐
2
2

M
ay
‐2
2

Ju
n
‐2
2

Ju
l‐
2
2

A
u
g‐
2
2

Se
p
‐2
2

O
ct
‐2
2

N
o
v‐
2
2

D
ec
‐2
2

Ja
n
‐2
3

Fe
b
‐2
3

M
ar
‐2
3

A
p
r‐
2
3

M
ay
‐2
3

Ju
n
‐2
3

Ju
l‐
2
3

A
u
g‐
2
3

Se
p
‐2
3

O
ct
‐2
3

N
o
v‐
2
3

D
ec
‐2
3

Ja
n
‐2
4

Fe
b
‐2
4

M
ar
‐2
4

A
p
r‐
2
4

Total Traffic Stops

High, 169

Low, 50

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

180

Ja
n
‐2
2

Fe
b
‐2
2

M
ar
‐2
2

A
p
r‐
2
2

M
ay
‐2
2

Ju
n
‐2
2

Ju
l‐
2
2

A
u
g‐
2
2

Se
p
‐2
2

O
ct
‐2
2

N
o
v‐
2
2

D
ec
‐2
2

Ja
n
‐2
3

Fe
b
‐2
3

M
ar
‐2
3

A
p
r‐
2
3

M
ay
‐2
3

Ju
n
‐2
3

Ju
l‐
2
3

A
u
g‐
2
3

Se
p
‐2
3

O
ct
‐2
3

N
o
v‐
2
3

D
ec
‐2
3

Ja
n
‐2
4

Fe
b
‐2
4

M
ar
‐2
4

A
p
r‐
2
4

Total Citations Issued



OWI Arrests:

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Total

2024 0 1 1 0 2

2023 0 0 1 1 1 0 1 0 0 1 0 2 7

2022 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 2 0 0 3

Motor Vehicle Crashes (Public Roadway):

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Total

2024 6 4 2 4 16

2023 3 7 7 3 7 10 7 8 7 7 11 11 88

2022 2 3 2 6 4 6 5 7 11 7 8 5 66

Motor Vehicle Crashes (Private Property):

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Total

2024 4 8 6 7 25

2023 6 8 6 5 2 7 3 4 8 5 7 9 70

2022 11 5 5 5 12 5 10 8 4 7 7 5 84

6

4

2

4

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Motor Vehicle Crashes (Public Roadway)

2024 2023 2022



Crimes, Reports, and Arrest Activities

Field Contacts:

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Total

2024 87 104 45 69 305

2023 83 51 56 76 105 80 127 76 69 69 62 40 894

2022 4 11 14 3 102 44 27 41 22 49 55 55 427

Criminal Arrests:

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Total

2024 59 48 60 55 222

2023 50 73 105 61 71 51 120 77 66 98 59 67 898

2022 1 2 10 5 10 12 10 15 31 43 44 48 231

87
104

45

69

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Field Contacts

2024 2023 2022

59
48

60 55

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Criminal Arrests

2024 2023 2022



Incidents Cleared by Arrests:

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Total

2024 41 31 38 39 149

2023 38 41 54 42 47 37 55 42 44 51 52 45 548

2022 11 3 13 6 13 10 18 22 32 28 25 37 218

Incident Reports:

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Total

2024 210 191 212 224 837

2023 203 221 221 211 213 262 267 224 246 227 190 204 2689

2022 138 140 172 127 215 181 233 221 249 213 184 193 2266

41

31
38 39

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Incidents Cleared by Arrests

2024 2023 2022

210 191
212 224

0

100

200

300

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Incident Reports

2024 2023 2022



Medicals/Overdoses/Suicida/Check Wellbeing:

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Total

2024 44 33 46 32 155

2023 25 39 27 37 49 67 33 35 19 43 21 26 421

2022 33 43 42 28 35 26 39 37 33 37 46 29 428

Larcenies/Frauds:

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Total

2024 30 26 19 39 114

2023 29 31 18 27 15 12 46 28 30 49 26 42 353

2022 28 19 26 21 26 27 30 25 34 39 32 26 333

Assaults:

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Total

2024 5 3 5 3 16

2023 1 1 4 3 1 2 3 3 1 4 2 2 27

2022 1 1 2 2 4 3 6 7 6 2 2 2 38



1 of 3 Report Created: May 07, 2024 15:41:50

Agency Crime Statistics
MI6171000 - Roosevelt Park Police Department

Date Range: 01/01/2024 - 05/07/2024
Incident and victim counts are by hierarchy file offense in a multiple offense incident.

File Class File Class Description Victim 
Totals

Total 
Incidents

Number of 
Arrests

Exceptionally 
Cleared

Clearance 
Rate

Current 
Period 

Offenses

Previous 
Period 

Offenses

Percent 
Change

11001 Sexual Penetration Penis/Vagina CSC 1st 0 0 0 0 0% 0 1 -100%

12000 Robbery 1 1 0 0 0% 1 0 0%

13001 Nonaggravated Assault 10 10 3 4 70% 10 8 25%

13002 Aggravated/Felonious Assault 1 1 0 1 100% 1 0 0%

22001 Burglary Forced Entry 1 2 1 1 100% 2 1 100%

23003 Larceny Theft from Building 2 3 2 1 100% 3 3 0%

23005 Larceny Theft from Motor Vehicle 2 2 0 0 0% 2 0 100%

23006 Larceny Theft of Motor Vehicle Parts/Accessories 0 0 0 0 0% 0 2 -100%

23007 Larceny Other 2 3 2 1 100% 3 4 -25%

24001 Motor Vehicle Theft 2 2 1 1 100% 2 1 100%

25000 Forgery/Counterfeiting 0 0 0 0 0% 1 1 0%

26001 Fraud False Pretense/Swindle/Confidence Game 1 1 0 0 0% 1 4 -75%

26002 Fraud Credit Card/ATM 0 0 0 0 0% 1 4 -75%

26003 Fraud Impersonation 1 1 0 0 0% 1 0 0%

26005 Fraud Wire 0 0 0 0 0% 0 1 -100%

26007 Fraud Identity Theft 0 0 0 0 0% 0 1 -100%

27000 Embezzlement 0 0 0 0 0% 0 3 -100%



2 of 3 Report Created: May 07, 2024 15:41:50

File Class File Class Description Victim 
Totals

Total 
Incidents

Number of 
Arrests

Exceptionally 
Cleared

Clearance 
Rate

Current 
Period 

Offenses

Previous 
Period 

Offenses

Percent 
Change

29000 Damage To Property 9 11 1 1 18% 11 9 22%

30002 Retail Fraud Theft 0 82 52 11 77% 82 69 19%

30003 Retail Fraud Refund/Exchange 0 1 0 0 0% 1 0 0%

30004 Retail Fraud Organized Crime 0 1 0 1 100% 1 0 0%

35001 Violation of Controlled Substance 0 4 3 0 75% 4 2 100%

35002 Narcotic Equipment Violations 0 1 1 0 100% 1 4 -75%

36004 Sex Offense Other 0 0 0 0 0% 0 2 -100%

38001 Family Abuse/Neglect Nonviolent 2 1 0 1 100% 1 0 0%

41002 Liquor Violations Other 0 1 1 0 100% 1 0 0%

42000 Drunkenness 0 0 0 0 0% 0 3 -100%

48000 Obstructing Police 0 2 1 0 50% 5 6 -17%

50000 Obstructing Justice 0 34 32 2 100% 37 58 -36%

52001 Weapons Offense Concealed 0 1 0 0 0% 1 2 -50%

53001 Disorderly Conduct 0 10 2 8 100% 10 13 -23%

53002 Public Peace Other 0 2 1 1 100% 3 8 -63%

54001 Hit And Run Motor Vehicle Accident 0 0 0 0 0% 0 1 -100%

54002 OUIL or OUID 0 1 1 0 100% 2 2 0%

55000 Health And Safety 0 1 0 0 0% 1 2 -50%

57001 Trespass 3 40 6 34 100% 55 43 28%

62000 Conservation 0 0 0 0 0% 0 1 -100%

70000 Juvenile Runaway 0 1 0 1 100% 1 3 -67%

73000 Miscellaneous Criminal Offense 0 0 0 0 0% 0 1 -100%



3 of 3 Report Created: May 07, 2024 15:41:50

File Class File Class Description Victim 
Totals

Total 
Incidents

Number of 
Arrests

Exceptionally 
Cleared

Clearance 
Rate

Current 
Period 

Offenses

Previous 
Period 

Offenses

Percent 
Change

Agency Totals: 37 220 110 69 81% 245 263 -7%

Law Enforcement Officers Killed or Assaulted
Officers Killed: 0
Officers Assaulted without Injury: 0
Officers Assaulted with Injury: 0

Number of Motor Vehicles Stolen: 2 Premises Entered Count: 0



1

Jared D. Olson

From: Ann M. Wisniewski
Sent: Thursday, April 18, 2024 3:15 PM
To: 'Michele Wittkopp'
Cc: Jared D. Olson
Subject: RE: MADL in Roosevelt Park

Michele this is awesome,  I put you on the calendar and we are excited to have you and the animals and the 4H and 
the Girls and Boys club involved.  Let me know if you have any other idea’s. 

Thank you 

Ann Wisniewski, City Clerk 

From: Michele Wittkopp   
Sent: Thursday, April 18, 2024 12:18 PM 
To: Ann M. Wisniewski 
Subject: MADL in Roosevelt Park 

Hello Ann, 
My name is Michele. I am the Youth Coordinator for Muskegon Area District Library. (Kevin gave me your 
contact info.) I am making my final plans for our 2024 Summer Reading Program. We would like to have 2 
outdoor programs at Roosevelt Park’s Community Center Park in addition to storytime. Would Roosevelt Park 
be okay with the following dates, times, and programs? 

On Thursday, June 27 at 6pm we would like partner with 4H and bring baby goats and rabbits to Community 
Center Park. Other animals may join if they become available. Their TENTATIVE program title and description 
is… 
“Animal Meet and Greet    Here’s your chance to meet baby goats and rabbits AND make goat milk ice 
cream! Animals provided by Muskegon County 4-H.’ 

On Thursday, August 1 at 6pm we would like partner with the Boys and Girls Club, the Neal Fitness Club, and 
Kids Food Basket to Community Center Park. Their program description is… 
“Kids Outdoor Games  When children and their families share a love of healthy food and physical activities, 
everyone in the community benefits. Join the Neal Fitness Center and the Boys and Girls Club for fun and 
engaging fitness games that are great for families. After the games, stick around for a food demo that is sure to 
please your taste buds.” 

Thank you for considering these programs, 
Michele 

Michele Wittkopp  
Youth Coordinator/Lead Librarian II | MADL.org 231-737-6248 x124 
| MADL Administration













FINANCIAL REPORT 

FEBRUARY FINANCIAL REPORT 

The total opera�ng expenses for the first five 
months of the 2024 fiscal year were $5,758,069, 
or 30% of the FY2024 budget. Total revenues for 
the same period were $9,867,680, or 40% of the 
budget.       

FARM REPORT 

Ted Costigan / Farm Manager 

2024 GROWING SEASON 

The Ag Equipment Operators have been checking 
over all our equipment in prepara�on for spring 
weather. We an�cipate ge�ng out in the fields 
next month to finish �llage opera�ons and begin 
plan�ng alfalfa. Bids for ag chemicals and 
fer�lizers were recently received, so we’ll be 
looking to get fer�lizer shipped a�er the bids are 
awarded at the April mee�ng of the Board of 
Public Works. We were happy with the bids. With 
few excep�ons, prices were very comparable to 
last year’s.  

Our Irriga�on Technicians have finished shop work 
and are star�ng to head out to the fields to 
perform field maintenance on the irriga�on rigs 
and run them without water to check for proper 
opera�on. This will give us opportuni�es to 
correct any issues beforehand and will help 
increase the likelihood of smooth opera�on during 
the irriga�on season. Bids on the six new irriga�on 
rigs for 2024 were opened near the end of the 
month. Again, we were pleased with the low bid 
of $599,925, which came in under budget and will 
be awarded at the April Board mee�ng. 

[Editor’s Note: Farm Manager Ted Cos�gan has 
announced that he will be leaving his employment 

with Muskegon County in order to take over the 
full�me opera�on of his father-in-law’s farm. We 
are currently in the process of interviewing 
candidates to fill his shoes.]    

SPECIAL ANNOUNCEMENT 

Dave Johnson / Director  

RECOVERING A NEW RESOURCE AT THE 
RESOURCE RECOVERY CENTER 

Our specialty at the Muskegon County Resource 
Recovery Center is recovering clean water. Now 
an addi�onal new resource will be recovered at 
our facility. For seven and a half years we’ve been 
leasing our 2000 acres south of Apple Avenue for 
solar energy development, and we are thrilled to 
announce that Consumers Energy is star�ng 
construc�on of a 250 MW solar facility there in 
April. Instead of recovering clean water on that 
land as we’ve done for the last 50 years, we’ll be 
recovering energy from the sun.  

Those 2000 acres contain 1000 acres of cropland, 
and some have wondered whether losing that 
cropland will cramp our capacity for trea�ng 
wastewater. Actually it shouldn’t be a problem.  
Because those acres contain a fair amount of clay, 
they’re not as permeable to water, and that has 
always limited the amount of wastewater we can 
spray on them. That makes them our least 
valuable acres from a wastewater treatment 

R������� R������� C����� M������ R�����    M����, 2024 

The Resource Recovery Center exists to improve the public health of Muskegon County citizens by receiving 
polluted wastewater, cleaning it up, and returning it the environment for reuse and enjoyment.  We recognize the 
weight of our responsibility as stewards both of the environment and of our system infrastructure which enables 
us to do our job.  Our goal is to offer our service to the people of Muskegon County at the best possible rate 
without compromising our stewardships.  

~David Johnson, Director 

3



 
Muskegon County Resource Recovery Center      Progress Report March, 2024    Page 2 of 5 

The County of Muskegon is an Equal Opportunity Employer committed to workplace diversity and compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

bid. A pre-bid mee�ng was held on March 20th and 
was well a�ended by contractors. The bid opening 
dates are April 2nd, 4th & 6th. These three contracts 
specifically deal with the construc�on of the main 
pipeline. The project’s remaining five contracts are 
related to the specific needs of the City of 
Coopersville and some of the industries to enable 
them to u�lize the main pipeline.     

Prein&Newhof is finalizing the plans for the West 
Randall Li� Sta�on, which is the injec�on point into 
the main pipeline for the City of Coopersville flow, 
including the flows from Con�nental Dairy Facili�es 
and fairlife. We an�cipate receiving those plans for 
internal review within the next couple of weeks. 

STATISTICAL COMPARISONS 

Amelia Işitan / Operations Supervisor 

FLOWS AND LAGOON LEVELS 

The average daily piped wastewater flow (Fig. 1) 
received at the MCRRC in February was 10.95 MGD, 
which was a 2% increase over last year. Despite 
being a short month, February witnessed a record 
high hauled waste volume (Fig. 2) resul�ng from the 
increased flow that we’re receiving from fairlife, an 
increase from flow that used to go to the now 
closed digester in Fremont, and waste that would 
ordinarily have gone to the Allegan Wastewater 
Treatment Plant. (Allegan was experiencing a 
temporary plant upset, and some of their hauled 
waste clients discharged to us during that �me.) The 
record 15.7 MG was 68.8% higher than this �me last 
year. Finally, as of February 26th, the storage lagoon 
volume was 2,931 MG, 4.0% lower than it was last 
year (Fig. 3). 

perspec�ve. North of Apple we s�ll have 4000 acres
of  cropland  on  which  to  treat  wastewater.  Even  if
we  reason  that  losing  20%  of  our  cropland  would
propor�onately  reduce  our  hydraulic  capacity,  we
would  s�ll be 23 MGD under  capacity  based on our
current  flow of 11 MGD.  Though we  do  have  bright
prospects  for  eventual  increases  in  flow  (e.g.,  with
the  comple�on  of  the  Southeast  Regional  Force
Main),  even  in  our  wildest  dreams  we  don’t
an�cipate adding 23 MGD.

Another item on the list of benefits of the new solar
facility  is  that  the  value  of  the  lease  payments  will
be  greater  than  the  net  income  from  the  crops
grown on that land. The solar farm will therefore be
a  benefit  to  the  municipal  users  of  the  Muskegon
County  treatment  system.  The  lease  income  will
offset the cost of trea�ng wastewater more than the
crops.  Moorland  Township  and  the  Ravenna  School
District  will  also  be  benefited  because  of  the  tax
revenue that the solar facility will provide for them.

INFRASTRUCTURE  MAINTENANCE  AND
IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS

Doug Noyes / RRC Engineer & Project Manager

IRRIGATION MAIN ISOLATION CAP

In an�cipa�on of the Consumers Energy solar facility
going  in  south  of  Apple,  we  are  having  to  cap  our
irriga�on  force  main  in  order  to  isolate  that  area.
The  ten  irriga�on  rigs  that  used  to  be  down  there
are  now  gone,  along  with  their  cement  pivot  pads
and  above-ground  plumbing.  West  Michigan
Dirtworks is the contractor that will be installing the
cap  on  the  force  main.  Without  the  cap,  irriga�on
water  would  be  pumped  out  on  the  ground  where
each  rig  had  been.  West  Michigan  Dirtworks  was
onsite on March 20th to begin work on the project.
Suffering  through  a  cold  and  windy  day,  they  were
able  to  locate  the  exis�ng  irriga�on  line  and  get  a
measurement  of  the  outside  diameter  of  the  force
main  so  that  they  could  get  the  correct  fi�ngs
ordered.  They  an�cipate  the  fi�ngs  will  be
delivered  in  a  couple  of  weeks.  The  work  needs  to
be substan�ally complete by April 30, 2024.

SOUTHEAST REGIONAL FORCE MAIN

The  first  three  construc�on  contracts  for  the
Southeast  Regional  Force  Main  Project  are  out  to

4



9.00

10.00

11.00

12.00

13.00

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

F
lo

w
 i

n
 M

G
D

Time in Months

2021 - 2024 Total Piped Wastewater Monthly Flow 

2022

2023

2024

FY 2024 Budgeted Avg. Flow: 11.0 MGD
FY 2024 Actual Avg. Flow: 10.38 MGD 
February 2024 Avg. Flow: 10.95 MGD 
February 2023 Avg. Flow: 10.74 MGD

Figure 1

 
Muskegon County Resource Recovery Center      Progress Report March, 2024    Page 3 of 5 

The County of Muskegon is an Equal Opportunity Employer committed to workplace diversity and compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act 
5



2,000,000

2,500,000

3,000,000

3,500,000

4,000,000

4,500,000

5,000,000

5,500,000

6,000,000

6,500,000

7,000,000

7,500,000

8,000,000

8,500,000

9,000,000

9,500,000

10,000,000

10,500,000

11,000,000

11,500,000

12,000,000

12,500,000

13,000,000

13,500,000

14,000,000

14,500,000

15,000,000

15,500,000

16,000,000

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

V
o

lu
m

e 
in

 G
al

lo
n

s

Time in Months

2021 - 2023 Hauled Waste Monthly Volume 

2022

2023

2024

YTD FY24:  70.3 MG 

February 2024:  15.7 MG 

February 2023:  9.3 MG

FY24 Budgeted:  10.7 MG/month
FY24 Avg:  14.1 MG/month 

Figure 2

 
Muskegon County Resource Recovery Center      Progress Report March, 2024    Page 4 of 5 

The County of Muskegon is an Equal Opportunity Employer committed to workplace diversity and compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act 
6



681

682

683

684

685

686

687

688

689

690

691

692

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

E
le

v
at

io
n

 i
n

 F
ee

t

Time in Months

2021 - 2023 Metro Lagoon Elevation 

2022

2023

2024

02/26/2024  686.3 ft. or  2,931 MG
02/27/2023  686.5 ft. or  3,053 MG

Figure 3

 
Muskegon County Resource Recovery Center      Progress Report March, 2024    Page 5 of 5 

The County of Muskegon is an Equal Opportunity Employer committed to workplace diversity and compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act 
7


	Item 1 AGN 5-13-2024
	Item 2 Council Memo 5-13-2024
	Item 3 Meeting Minutes 04-15-2024
	Item 4 05-13-24 List of Bills
	Item 5 Pam Hanophy Resignation
	FW_ resignation
	Item 7 Appointments to DDA Board-Kim Bourdo
	Item 8 Memo-Resolution of Support for National Police Week
	ITem 9 Resolution 24-04 Police Week
	Item 10 Muskegon Police Officers Memorial Service (1) (003)
	Item 11 Memo-Resolution of Support for National Public Works Week
	Item 12 Resolution 24-05 Public Works Week
	Item 13 Memo-Parks Recommendation for Playground
	Item 14 Final Parks Design
	2024 ParkVision Final Proposal
	Parks Addition Page
	2024 ParkVision Final Proposal
	2024 ParkVision Final Proposal
	2024 ParkVision Final Proposal
	2024 ParkVision Final Proposal

	ITem 15 memo-DWRF ITA Submittal
	Item 16 DWRF Increase of 61 million
	Item 17 Draft FY 2026 Intent to Apply Form Preview
	Item z1  Cover Page Informational Updates
	Item z2 04 April 2024 Monthly Report
	Item z2.1 ril 2024 Monthly Stats
	Item z2.2 RPPD Agency Crime Statistics Report - MI6171000 May 2024 YTD
	item z4 MADL Programming
	Item z4 MAT's Ridership Handout
	ITem z5 March Wastewater Report
	Resource Recovery Center March 2024 Monthly Report.pdf
	Graphs for March, 2024, Monthly Report.pdf
	Annual Flows-Fig. 1
	Hauled Waste-Fig. 2
	Lagoon Elevation-Fig. 3






